ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2017
1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator David WIson, Chair

Senat or Nat asha von | nmhof, Vice Chair
Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or Tom Begi ch

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Peter M cciche
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 72

"An Act adding to the powers and duties of the State Comm ssion
for Human Rights; and relating to and prohibiting discrimnation
based on sexual orientation or gender identity or expression."”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 72

SHORT TI TLE: DI SCRI M NATI ON: GENDER I D.; SEXUAL ORI ENT.
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GARDNER

03/ 01/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 01/ 17 (S) HSS, JUD, FIN
03/ 31/ 17 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 72.

MEGAN HOLLAND, St af f

Senator Berta Gardner
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2017



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded a sectional analys

MARTI BUSCAGLI A, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssion for Human Rights

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION STATEMENT: Addressed a resolution
conmmi ssion in support of SB 72.

JUDY ANDI CE, advocate

League of Wonen Voters

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

TERESA KENNEDY, enpl oyee

Nati onal Gay and Lesbi an Chanber of Commerce
Washi ngton, D.C.

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

LI N DAVI S, advocate

Sout heast Al aska Gay and Lesbian Alliance
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

ALYSON CURREY, advocate

Pl anned Par ent hood Votes Northwest and Hawai i
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

CASSANDRA BROWN, representing self
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

EMO LEE, representing self
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

CARVEN LOVWRY, Executive Director

Al aska Network on Donestic Violence and Sexual
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

JI'M M NNERY, President

Al aska Fam |y Counci

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2-

is for SB 72.
passed by
72.
72.
72.
72.
72.
72.
Assaul t
72.
SB 72.
March 31,

t he

2017



MARI NA DAY, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

MELANI E LI NDHOLM representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

KATHY OTTERSTEN, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

MORGAN LIM representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

LESLI E FAILS, M nister

Unitarian Universalist Fellowship of Fairbanks
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

RONALD CASTO, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

PH L OSBORN, representing self

Unitarian Universalist Fellowship of Fairbanks
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

DR. EMLY OLSEN, M D., representing self
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

DANI EL STICH, representing self
Two Rivers, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

HAYDEN NEVI LL, Founder

CGender Pi oneers

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

ELI ZABETH LYKE, representing self

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3-

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

72.

March 31,

2017



RUDY POGLI TSH, representing self
Wasill a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

M CHAEL BURKE, Past or

St. Mary's Church Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

REBECCA DUNNE, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

LI NDSEY PARKI NSON, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

DAVI D KREI SS- TOWKI NS, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

ALYSSA QUI NTYNE, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

MARTI N ELDRED, Past or

Joy Lut heran Church

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

Bl LLY FARVWELL, Executive Director

I dentity Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

COLLEEN HEANEY- MEAD, advocate

Growi ng Al aska Leaders

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

EM LY KLCC, representing self
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

CENEVI EVE HOLUKI, representing self
Anchor age, Al aska

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

SB 72.

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 72.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4-

March 31,

2017



M KE COONS, representing self
Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 72.

PAI GE POSTI N, representing self
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 72.

BROCKS BANKER, Youth Program Manager

Al aska ldentity

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 72.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 30: 59 PM

CHAIR DAVID WLSON called the Senate Health and Soci al
Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present at

cal |

to order were Senators Begich, von Inmhof, G essel,

Chair W1 son.

SB 72-DI SCRI M NATI ON:  GENDER |1 D. ; SEXUAL ORI ENTATI ON

1:31: 29 PM
CHAI R W LSON announced the consideration of SB 72.

1:31:41 PM
SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SB 72, spoke to the follow ng sponsor statenent:

Senate Bill 72 is very inportant to nme personally and
| think probably many of us have relatives and friends
who woul d be protected under these provisions. Article
| in Alaska's constitution says, "This constitution is
dedicated to the principles that all people have a
nat ur al right to life, liberty, the pursuit of
happi ness, and the enjoynment of the rewards of their
own industry, that all persons are equal and entitled
to equal rights, opportunities, and protection under
the law, and that all persons have corresponding
obligations to people in the state.”

Alaska human rights statute currently prohibits
discrimnation in enploynment, housing, and banking

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 31,

Servi ces

t he
and

2017



based on race, religion, color, national ancestry,
physi cal or nmental disability, age or sex. Senate Bill
72 would add to that Iist, "D scrimnation based on
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression;"”
under current statute Al askans are not protected from
di scrimnation of this Kkind.

H storically the state of Al aska has been on the
forefront of advocating for civil rights and
instituting measur es t hat enbrace our state's
diversity, and currently Anchorage, Juneau, and Bet hel
have ordinances simlar to this legislation, and state
enpl oyees are also protected from discrimnation based
on their gender identity and expression. Twenty-one
other states have passed legislation simlar to this
and the Alaska State Conm ssion for Human Rights has
passed a resolution in favor of including sexual
orientation and gender identity to the protections.

| think that the tinme to afford civil rights to all
Al askans, regardless of gender orientation, identity
or expression, is now National studies estimte that
three to four percent of the U S. population self
identifies as |eshian, bisexual, transsexual, or gay.
A 2011 survey specifically for Al aska estimtes about
3.5 percent of our state, but in a way the actual
nunbers are irrelevant. In suicide prevention we say
that even one is too many and | think that also holds
true for any civil rights violations. It's ny belief
t hat sexual orientation, gender identity or expression
should not interfere wth: any person's right to
expect fair treatnent under the law, a person's right
to live free of abuse and discrimnation, a person's
right to enpl oynent , to housi ng, to public
accomodations, and to banking services that are
available to everybody else; Alaskans today are
sonmetimes denied those rights on account of their
orientation, identity or expression.

It's also an econom c issue, the Anchorage Econonic
Devel opnent Cor poration's "Live. Wor k. Play."
initiative says this, "The job market is changing, it
is no |longer people going where the jobs are, instead
people go where they want to live, and the jobs are
going where the people are. Today's talent is |ooking
for a city that's aesthetically pleasing, welcomng
and open to diversity." The "One Anchorage One

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2017



Econony” team is proud to support the city's second
annual "Wel comng Wek in Anchorage,” that was
Septenber in 2016, and Anchorage is a nenber of the
National Wlcomng Cities Initiative. The Anchorage
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Corporation unani nously supported
the LGBT equal rights ordinance in Anchorage. Many
conpanies support simlar policies and institute
internal policies for econom c purposes, and as polls
and testinony reveal their support for this neasure
from Al askans of al | identities, orientation,
religious affiliations, and political parties.

At no cost to the state, this bill if passed wll
strengthen civil rights statutes and include one of
the fastest growi ng, vibrant and economcally active
communities in Alaska. The 2010 U S. Census showed
that LGBT households in Al aska grew by 57 percent over
the previous decade. It's time for the state to take
this in hand, live up to our constitution, and be a
human rights state where people are equal, entitled to
equal rights, opportunities, and protections.

1:37: 05 PM

MEGAN HOLLAND, Staff, Senator Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, said SB 72 is an act adding to the
powers and duties of the Alaska State Commi ssion for Human
Rights and relating to and prohibiting discrimnation based on
sexual orientation or gender identity or expression.

She reviewed the follow ng sectional analysis for SB 72:

Section 1:

Amends AS 18. 80. 060 regarding the powers and duties of the Human
Ri ghts Comm ssion. The section adds "sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression” to the list of categories that include
race, religion, color, national ancestry, physical or nental
disability, age, sex, nmarital status, changes in nmarital status,
pregnancy, or parenthood.

Section 2:

Amends AS 18.80.200 to add "sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression” to the list of discrimnations which are cause
for public concern and the need to prevent discrimnation in
enpl oynent, credit and financi ng practi ces, public
accommodati ons and sal e, |ease or rental of real property.

Section 3:

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2017



Amends AS 18.80.210 to add "sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression” to the categories of protected civil rights.

Section 4:
Amends AS 18.80.220 to add "sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression” to the prohibitions against unlawful enploynent
practices.

Section 5:

Amends AS 18.80.230 to add "sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression” to the prohibitions against unlawful practices in
publ i ¢ accommodat i ons.

Section 6:

Amends AS 18.80.240 to add "sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression” to the prohibitions against unlawful practices in
the sale or rental of real property.

Section 7:

Amends AS 18.80.250 to add “sexual orientation, gender identity,
or expression” to the prohibitions against unlawful practices in
extending credit.

Section 8:

Amends AS 18.80.255 to add “sexual orientation, gender identity,
or expression” to the prohibitions against unlawful practices by
the state or its political subdivisions.

Section 9. Anends AS 18.80.300 to add “sexual orientation,
gender identity, or expression” to the prohibitions against
unl awful practices in blockbusting, or practices by a real
estate agents to close a transaction.

Section 10: Anends AS 18.80.300 to add definitions of “gender
identity or expression,” and “sexual orientation” to Al aska
statute.

CHAIR WLSON asked Marti Buscaglia to address the conmmttee
regardi ng the Al aska Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

1:40: 44 PM

MARTI BUSCAGLI A, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion for Hunman
Ri ghts, Anchorage, explained that the comrssion's resolution
calls on the Legislature to revise the Alaska Human Rights Law,
AS 18.80, as follows:

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2017



e Expressly prohibit discrimnation on the basis of sexual
orientation or gender identity and expression.

* Requests staff to work with the Departnent of law to draft
pr oposed regul ati ons addr essi ng t he i ncl usi on of
prohi bition against discrimnation on the basis of sexual
orientation or gender identity wunder the existing |aw
prohi biting sexual discrimnation.

* Consider the admnistrative application of the Education
Law Center's (ELC) interpretation of Title VII of 1964
Cvil Rghts Act prohibiting enploynment discrimnation on
the basis of sexual orientation and or gender identity or
expr essi on.

M5. BUSCAGLI A explained that the conmssion is in the stage of
actually drafting the |anguage, but the comm ssion's belief is a
statute change would send a stronger statenent of the state's
position on anti-discrimnation. She disclosed that t he
comm ssion has a long history of supporting equal rights and
noted that the state has also been a |eader in adopting strong
civil rights protections. She set forth that strengthening the
state's statute to protect people in the |esbian, gay, bisexual
and transgender (LGBT) comunity would be part of Alaska's
strong advocacy of civil rights.

CHAIR WLSON asked Ms. Buscaglia to confirm that the comm ssion
is working on amendi ng the process through regul ati ons.

M5. BUSCAGLI A answered yes.

1: 44: 24 PM
SENATOR BEA CH asked Senator Garner what are the current
discrimnation rates in Alaska on the basis of sexua

orientation or gender identity and expression.

SENATOR GARDNER explained that previously when a simlar
resolution had a public hearing there was testinony that there
was not a problem with discrimnation in Al aska. She disclosed
that her answer to the remark that the was no discrimnation was
that without a protected class, people cannot bring a conplaint
and therefore the data is not collected by the Human Rights
Comm ssion because they have no jurisdiction over that. She
remarked that it is hard to know exactly what rates are because
there are not charges or any allegations; however, there has
been sonme research that nmakes estimtes. He said M. Holland
will provide additional information.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 9- March 31, 2017



M5. HOLLAND disclosed that data from other states has been
provided to conmttee nenbers. She pointed out that a 2011
survey in Anchorage showed significant rates of discrimnation
in enploynment, public accomopdations, housing, and financing.
She detailed that the 2011 survey indicated that 21 percent of
LGBT people in Anchorage reported being turned down for a job
that they were otherwise qualified for because of their sexua
orientation or gender identity, 15 percent report being fired
because of their orientation or gender identity, and 73 percent
report hiding their sexual orientation or gender identity at
work to avoid discrimnation.

1:47: 04 PM

SENATOR BEA CH called attention to a census snapshot from the
Wllians Institute on the prevalence of sane-sex couples in
Al aska. He addressed Ms. Holland's testinony on the 2011 survey
and shared an exanple of sexual-orientation discrimnation that
occurred within his famly in Anchorage. He renarked that the
bill would have a direct inpact on his famly and noted a
possi ble conflict. He said a novenent is going on where a |ot of
nati onal conpani es have noved forward on their own to prohibit
discrimnation and sonme will not do business in states where
di scrimnation happens. He pointed out t hat with the
di scrim nation-policy novenent going on, he asked why a state
| aw i s needed.

M5. HOLLAND replied that although there is a prevalence of
internal policies within private industries to give protections
to individuals, the protections typically only cover enploynent
areas. She set forth that the bill's sponsor believes that the
bill 1is absolutely necessary because the extent of soneone's
civil rights should not be contingent on their enployer or where
they live. She said the civil rights for all Al askans should be
pr ot ect ed.

1:49: 43 PM
CHAI R W LSON asked how the bill affects religious institutions.

M5. HOLLAND answered that the bill's intent |anguage sinply adds
an additional protective class, so the sanme expectations and
l egal requirenents that are applied to religious institutions on
behalf of sonmeone's gender, race, or nmarital status stil

applies. She noted that there was a Suprenme Court case that
created the "m nisterial exception"” where religious institutions
are exenpt from anti-discrimnatory policies related to the area
of enploynent. She noted that religious institutions would have

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2017



to uphold their current requirenents not to discrimnate in
areas such as housing and public accombdati on.

1:51:15 PM
CHAI R W LSON opened public testinmony on SB 72.

SENATOR GARDNER asked pernission to read three testinonies into
t he record.

1: 52: 15 PM
At ease.

1: 52: 50 PM
CHAIR WLSON called the commttee back to order

SENATOR GARDNER directed attention to three e-mails from Mary
Par ker, Donald Johnson, and Paige Hodson. She noted that M.
Hodson's witten testinony describes her son's experience in
Al aska and how he ultimately left the state.

1:54: 09 PM

JUDY ANDI CE, advocate, League of Wnen Voters, Juneau, Al aska
testified in support of SB 72. She set forth that the League of
Wnen Voters of the United States believes in equality in
education, housing, and enploynment for all persons regardl ess of
their race, <color, gender, religion, national origin, age,
sexual orientation, or disability.

1:55:52 PM

TERESA KENNEDY, enployee, National Gay and Lesbian Chanber of
Commerce, Washington, D.C., testified in support of SB 72. She
revealed that she is a former resident of Alaska. She set forth
that Alaska is failing by not including LGBT people in the
state's nondi scrimnation |aws.

1: 59: 50 PM

LIN DAVIS, advocate, Southeast Al aska Gay and Lesbian Alliance
(SEAGLA), Juneau, Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. She
revealed that she is a married |esbian and has been with her
wife for 27 years. She disclosed that her wife is a physician
and a nenber of the Alaska Acadeny of Famly Physicians and
noted that the acadeny strongly supports LGBT protections. She
said the American Acadeny of Fanmily Physicians have studi ed that
communities are healthier when young people feel they can grow
up to be who they are neant to be.

2:02: 44 PM

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2017



ALYSON CURREY, advocate, Planned Parenthood Votes Northwest and
Hawai i, Juneau, Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. She said
as a health-care provider, SB 72 is legislation that is good for
public health and good for business. She set forth that each of
us should be free to build loving relationships and create
famlies wthout discrimnation based on an individual's
personal -private |ives.

2:03:54 PM

CASSANDRA BROWN, representing self, Juneau, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 72. She read a letter of support of SB 72 from an
i ndi vidual that was not in attendance.

2:07:27 PM

EMO LEE, representing self, Juneau, Al aska, testified in support
of SB 72. She set forth that she is transgender, a human, and
expects as an Anerican citizen to be afforded the respect and
protection of the law afforded in theory to all other hunman
bei ngs.

2:10: 02 PM

CARMEN LOWRY, Executive Director, Alaska Network on Donmestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault (ANDVSA), Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 72. She set forth that ANDVSA fully supports SB
72 that wupholds the civil and human rights of individuals
regardless of their sexual orientation, gender identity or
gender expression.

2:13:41 PM

JIM M NNERY, President, Alaska Famly Council, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in opposition of SB 72. He said the thousands
that the Alaska Famly Council represents cherishes the freedom
to peacefully express and live by its religious, philosophical
and political beliefs. He remarked that laws |ike SB 72 are used
by the governnent to conpel citizens to sacrifice their deepest
convictions on marriage and what it neans to be male and femnal e.

2:16: 30 PM

MARI NA DAY, representing self, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 72. She asked that "Sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression"” be added to the Al aska Human Ri ghts Law.

2:18: 32 PM

MELANI E LI NDHOLM representing self, Fai r banks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. She revealed that she and her
fiance have both experienced discrimnation because of their
identity, especially in enmploynment. She said her fiance was

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2017



fired for being transgender and she was denied enploynent
because her fiance is transgender.

2:19: 15 PM

KATHY OTTERSTEN, representing self, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 72. She said she spoke in favor of the bill
specifically as sonmeone who has a lifetinme of being valueless in
society. She reveal ed her personal information to the commttee.
She beseeched the conmttee to have the courage to nake an
affirmati ve statenment that all persons have val ue.

2:21: 25 PM

MORGAN LIM representing self, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 72. He said he was surprised to learn that the | aw
in Alaska allows soneone to be discrinmnated agai nst because of
their sexual orientation. He revealed that he is a gay man and
remarked that he is personally putting hinself at risk of
eviction if his landlord finds out that he is testifying in
support of SB 72. He set forth that no person should have the
fear of eviction or termnation of enploynent because when
testifying to legislators on an issue that is inportant to them

2:22:41 PM

LESLIE FAILS, Mnister, Unitarian Universalist Fellowship of
Fai r banks, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in support of SB 72. She
stated that she is in favor of equal rights for all people and
asked for support in SB 72 to make positive changes that wll
al l ow both people of faith and Al askans to nove forward.

2:23:58 PM

RONALD CASTO, representing self, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 72. He revealed that he is gay and shared his
di scrimnatory enploynent experiences. He set forth that having
the law on his side is inportant to him because laws are
reflective of the values and norals of Al askans.

2:25:10 PM

PHI L OSBORN, representing sel f, Unitarian Uni ver sal i st
Fel | owshi p of Fairbanks, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified in support
of SB 72. He set forth that it is well past tine to put to bed
the issue with discrimnation on the basis of sexual orientation
or gender identity and expression. He asked that religious
peopl e renenber to, "Love thy neighbor as thyself."

2:26:56 PM
DR EMLY OLSEN, MD., representing self, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. She referenced a policy position

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2017



paper from the Anerican College of Physicians (ACP) in regard to
LGBT health disparities. She detailed that ACP reconmends that
gender identity, independent and fundanentally different from
sexual orientation, be included as part of nondiscrimnation and
anti-harassnent policies.

2:28: 39 PM

DANI EL STICH, representing self, Two R vers, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 72. He revealed that he is gay and shared a
personal event where discrimnatory enploynent and habitation
events occurred due to his sexual orientation.

2:30:17 PM

HAYDEN NEVI LL, Founder, GCender Pioneers, Fairbanks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. He revealed that he is a
transgender man. He set forth that protecting gay, |esbhian and
transgender people in housing and enploynent is the right thing
to do.

2:32:24 PM

ELI ZABETH LYKE, representing self, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 72. He disclosed that she is a transgender
woman and the bill is very inportant to her. She said Al aska is
an anmazing place to live, but not having protection from
discrimnation on the basis of sexual orientation or gender
identity and expression is a glaring way that the state has nore
work to do.

2: 33: 55 PM

RUDY POGLI TSH, representing self, Wasilla, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 72. He opined that making sexual orientation
and gender identity or expression protected-legal classes
endangers wonen. He opined that SB 72 will allow sex offenders
to prey on wonen and girls by providing access to intimte
pl aces.

2:35:16 PM

M CHAEL BURKE, Pastor, St. Mry's Church Anchorage, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. He revealed that he has
seen at least a dozen cases in Alaska that were clear-cut
exanpl es of discrimnation against people that were gay, |esbian
or transgender.

2:38: 05 PM

REBECCA DUNNE, representing self, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 72. She revealed that she is |esbhian and
married to a transgender man. She remarked that discrimnation

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2017



in housing and the work place is nore preval ent because LGBT

have becone nore visible and are living nore honest |ives. She
said Alaska has a patchwork of nunicipal protections, but her
landlord in Fairbanks could still evict her for being or

appearing gay and her husband could be fired at his job for
being or appearing transgender. She set forth that SB 72 is
about fairness and will protect thousands of Al askans.

2:39:12 PM

LI NDSEY  PARKI NSON, representing self, Fai r banks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. She set forth that everyone
shoul d be supported and protected.

2:40: 05 PM

DAVID KREISS-TOWINS, representing self, Fairbanks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. He remarked that LGBT peopl e have
long been discrimnated against 1in Al aska. He said the
legislation in SB 72 should have been passed a long tine ago. He
noted that his background included working in shelters and noted
that people who identify as gay and |esbian typically end up in
shelters nore often.

2:42: 14 PM

ALYSSA QUI NTYNE, representing self, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 72. She said SB 72 is the long anticipated and
wel | needed protection for the LGT comunity in Al aska.

2:44. 18 PM

MARTI N ELDRED, Pastor, Joy Lutheran Church, Eagle River, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. He stated that as a faith | eader
in his community, he has w tnessed the heartbreak of injustice
as good, |aw abiding, taxpaying Al askans have been fired from
their jobs after their bosses discovered an enployee's sexual
orientation. He added that sonme people have been wunable to

secure housing due to discrimnation as well. He pointed out
that sane-gender marriage is legal in Alaska, but unfortunately
it is still legal to fire or deny housing to soneone for how

they were created and or for whomthey | ove.

2:46: 21 PM

BILLY FARWELL, Executive Director, Ildentity Al aska, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. He disclosed that
Identity Alaska's mssion is to advance the state's | esbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ comunity. He said
ldentity Alaska envisions a world where all Al askans can be
their authentic self in their comunity and still feel safe,
supported, and wel coned. He remarked that nuch progress has been

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 15- March 31, 2017



made with the LGBTQ community in recent tinmes, but the fear of

discrimnation is still very real for many Al askans today. He
poi nted out that LGBTQ people living in Anchorage, Juneau, and
city enployees in Bethel have basi c, non-di scri m nation

protections; however, the majority of Al askan residents still
live in communities without |egal protection from discrimnation
due to one's sexual orientation or gender identity. He set forth
that discrimnation is not an Al askan value and it is tine to
make those val ues | aw.

2:48: 47 PM

COLLEEN HEANEY- MEAD, advocat e, Growi ng Al aska Leaders,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. She said the
hope is in making discrimnation against nenbers of the LGBTQ
illegal at the state |level, and Al askans will nake it clear that
hate has no hone in Al aska.

2:50: 54 PM

EM LY KLOC, representing self, Anchorage, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 72. She disclosed that she is a queer citizen
living in Anchorage. She revealed that 20 to 40 percent of
youths who are gay and transgender are honeless; the bill is a
very crucial issue for themin terns of housing, especially when
the LGBT comunity nmakes up only seven percent of the total
popul ati on. She provided data to the commttee regarding trans-
violence in the U S. She said trans-queer wonen of color need to
be protected, accepted and enbraced by Al askans.

2:52:40 PM

GENEVI EVE  HOLWKI , representing self, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 72. She said she feels very saddened
that sonehow "all" has to be defined. She explained that she is

unconfortable that the Suprenme Court sonehow seens to feel that
religious rights can override a civil right. She set forth that
civil rights are what built the U S

2:53:41 PM

M KE COONS, representing self, Palner, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 72. He referenced crossdressing and sexual -
identity incidences that occurred with teenaged students in
schools. He revealed that he is retired, but noted that when he
went to work he did not talk about his sexual episodes because
he felt it was not appropriate. He pointed out that "at wll"
shoul d be considered regardi ng enploynment because he could have
been fired for any reason what soever.

2:57:17 PM

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -16- March 31, 2017



CHAI R W LSON announced that additional public testinony could be
gi ven on Wednesday, April 5.

2:57:40 PM

PAI GE POSTIN, representing self, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 72. She referenced a study by the G.BTQ Legal
Advocat es and Defenders (G.AD) that 20 percent of adults age 18
to 34 identify as LGBT, a significant increase from the 12
percent of adults age 35 to 51, or the 7 percent of adults age
52 to 71 who identify as LGBT. She set forth that now is the
time to protect the civil rights of LGBT individuals and act
will not lead to increased sex crinmes in anyway.

2:58:41 PM

BROOKS  BANKER, Youth  Program Manager, Al aska ldentity,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 72. He reveal ed
that he works with LGTQidentified youth ages 13 to 19. He
stated that many of the youth who are planning on furthering
their education are not considering Al aska as nuch because they
don't feel protected. He shared that friends who identify as
LGBTQ have voiced their plans to nove their lives to different
states in which they feel nore protected.

2:59:52 PM
CHAIR WLSON held SB 72 in conmttee with public testinony open.

3:00: 15 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair WI1son adjourned the Senate Health and Social Services
Conmittee at 3:00 p.m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2017



